
CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
Regular Meeting of the City Council 

City Hall 
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue 

AGENDA 
August 28, 2019 at 7:00 P.M. 

A. CALL TO ORDER:

B. ROLL CALL:   Vacant ___   LEEHY____   HARRIS____
MIAZGA ___   GUSTAFSON___ 

STAFF PRESENT:  THONGVANH____  

C. PRESENTATION

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
1. August 14, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

F. CONSENT AGENDA:
1. General Disbursements through: 8/22/19   $342,425.79

Payroll through:  8/15/19   $22,608.26
2. Adopting Findings of Fact for a Variance Request for 1800 Albert Street

G: POLICY ITEMS: 
1. Century Link Settlement Agreement

H. INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS:

I. COMMUNITY FORUM:

J. ADJOURNMENT:



BLANK PAGE 



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
Regular Meeting of the City Council 

City Hall 
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue 

  
AGENDA 

August 14, 2019 at 7:00 P.M. 
  
  
A.      CALL TO ORDER: 
  
B.      ROLL CALL:  Vacant ___   LEEHY__X__   HARRIS_X___ 
                                                 MIAZGA _X__   GUSTAFSON_X__ 
                                                  
          STAFF PRESENT:    THONGVANH_X___   
 
C.      PRESENTATION 

1.       Neal Kwong Award – Alia Tang  
 
Alia Tang  
I joined a Minnesota youth environmental activists group, which connected me with iMatter.  
This organization supports youth in leading campaigns to push their city governments to take 
more measures to conserve the environment and prevent climate change. I started a group in St. 
Paul that represents four different high schools. Over the next few months, my team and I 
researched our city’s current climate policies, met with city government members, researched 
climate action in other cities, and finally wrote a resolution and presented to the city council. 
Unfortunately, I left for a yearlong exchange in Mexico a couple of weeks before our group 
presented the resolution, so I passed on the leadership to two very capable team members who 
continued on the project. 

 The iMatter campaign was the focus of my senior project, but it was not all that I did. I 
attended various protests throughout the year, lobbied at the State Capitol, volunteered weekly 
at Twin Cities Tutors, an organization that tutors mainly low-income and/or immigrant 
children in their schoolwork. I am very proud of everything that I accomplished during that 
project - I learned a lot, developed my leadership skills, and enjoyed being able to have time in 
my day to give back to my community. I was also able to meet so many people with the same 
passion. Finally, I would like to thank the Kwong family for taking a tragic event and turn it 
into something positive for the community. Thank you for recognizing how important 
volunteerism, leadership, and citizenship are for a healthy community. 
 

D.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
1.       July 24, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Approved 4-0 
  
 
 

1 of 33



E.      PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
  
F.       CONSENT AGENDA:                                                                                     

1.       General Disbursements through:  8/07/19 $257,328.55 
   Payroll through: 7/31/19 $46,058.71 

2.       Approval of License(s) 
3.       Nomination of Esha Seth to Environment Commission 
4.       Investments through the 4M Fund 

 
Council Member Leehy 
I have the opportunity to meet Esha Seth at different city events.  I am happy to see her serve 
the Environment Commission and giving back to the community. 
 
City Administrator Thongvanh 
Morgan Stanley has decided that a $10 million investment fund is needed to maintain our 
investments with them.  The city does not have the amount and will need to move the 
investments from them.  The 4M fund is an excellent alternative. 
 

Approved 4-0 
 

G:      POLICY ITEMS: 
 

1. Variance Application for 1800 Albert Street 
 
City Administrator Thongvanh 
Mr. Todd Thun and Ms. Marsha Keppel have completed an application for a variance request at 
their property, located at 1800 Albert Street.  The property owners would like to build a three-
stall garage near the existing footprint, at an 8-foot corner-side yard setback, which would 
expand the nonconformity. Thus, they have requested a variance from the required corner-side 
yard setback. 
 
Mr. Thun and Ms. Keppel applied for a similar variance in 2005. At that time, the request was 
for a variance to allow a garage to be built on the same/current setback. Both the Planning 
Commission and City Council denied the variance request.  The Planning Commission held a 
public hearing on July 23, 2019 to consider the variance. Mr. Thun and a few of his neighbors 
spoke in favor of granting the variance. The Planning Commission voted 3-1 to recommend 
approving the variance. Staff recommends denying the variance because the proposed garage 
and its location do not meet all criteria for granting a variance.  
 
Todd Thun (1800 Albert St) 
Between 2005 and now, the variance code has changed. We want to rebuild the garage so it is 
close to the house, farther off the street, and having it close to the house is reasonable especially 
during the winter season.  It was suggested that we move the garage to the back of the property 
where there is more space; however, it will be 100-150 feet away from the house.  We think 
wanting to have a garage close to the house is a reasonable use. 
 

2 of 33



Will the public be better off if we grant the variance?  The answer is yes. If the variance 
ultimately is not approved, then we will rebuild the garage on the existing footprint. We are not 
going to walk a hundred, 150 feet to a garage in the back of the lot in the winter.  I am not 
saying that what we are proposing is a perfect solution, but we are trying to meet the city and 
the public's interest in getting that garage as far off the street.  That is what this variance 
accomplishes. If you vote for the variance, you are going to have the setback situation 
improved. If you vote against the variance, then the cars are going to be sticking out in the 
street for another 30 to 40 years. I think the variance presents the city with the unique 
opportunity to have a win-win situation.  
 
Dan Schaefer (1788 Albert St) 
The whole neighborhood is in favor of it.  The first factor is that precedent is not the issue. The 
second factor is being reasonableness, 100-150 feet from his house is not reasonable, and his 
solution is reasonable. The main risk is not the measurement but the distance from the road. We 
strongly suggest that you look at this matter. 
 
Nina Samuels (1801 Albert St) 
One, I see this as a potential improvement for everyone.  As Todd stated, it is not a perfect 
solution, but it is a good solution. We urge you to approve the variance.  
 
John Duncan (1753 Albert) 
You are taking the property and disallowing anything because you are trying to apply new 
codes to the existing properties.  I would like to support this variance.  They are great 
neighbors. Why are you disallowing things like this to improve the neighborhood?  
 
Earl Schwartz (1801 Albert St) 
If there were some reluctance to raise the issue of precedent, I would do it in this regard.  I 
would like to hear from any council member who would vote against the request for the 
variance explain why they would choose to overlook or neglect a strong, adamant, and clear 
decision of a duly constituted committee of this city is recommending that the variance be 
granted. The purviews of the council that you know, understand, or believe that you think that 
commission did not know, understand, or believe otherwise to ignore the precedent that the 
condition establishes is a serious problem. 
 
Akli Mansouri (1797 Hamline Ave) 
Have you ever thought that if he has a 3 car garage maybe they will not be any cars outside?  If 
there is enough space in there, then you will put the car inside and the street will be empty.  I 
walk and drive by the house every day, and the cars are always sticking out.  It can cause 
accidents, is not safe for children and everybody who are parking on the street.  It is a hazard 
right now.  If you approve the variance, you will remove the hazard.  
 
Council Member Miazga 
I am supporting the variance because if we are going to save three feet, then it will be safe for 
children who are walking on Garden Avenue and if we plan to put sidewalks there.  
 
 
 

3 of 33



Council Member Harris 
I am going to vote against the variance request because there are other options and the property 
owner does not want to use them.  It is also important to support the code. 
 
Mayor Gustafson 
I am going to vote to deny the application.  If you are going to build a new garage or keep 
existing, you still have to follow the code. 
 
The City Council has voted against commission recommendations in the past because we need 
to follow the code. 
 

Mayor Gustafson Moved to deny the variance, Approved 3-1 
  
H.                INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
  
Council Member Miazga 

• Environment Commission is working on changing the native plant-pollinator ordinance 
draft. 

 
Council Member Leehy 

• Parks and Recreation met on August 5.  We discussed the success of the garden in a box 
and will have it again next year.  We also talked about bringing new summer programs 
for next year and have programs end in August instead of July. 

• Curtiss Field basketball court is in its proximity to being completed. 
 

Council Member Harris 
• I have missed some city meetings due to family events.  I took my family to the 

Community Park playground and was happy to see it still in good shape. 
 
Mayor Gustafson 

• Community Engagement Commission will meet on Monday, August 19 at 7pm.  We 
will discuss topics for Human Rights Day, which is on Tuesday, December 16.   

• Cultivating a Caring Community - Gary Area Thinking will be on Monday, November 
18.  The third guest speaker is Ellen Krug.  All are welcome to the event. 

• Minnesota State Fair is from August 22 - September 2.  I will be at the fair on Thursday, 
August 22, and will kick off the Giant Slide at 11am with other city mayors and 
Governor Tim Walz.   

• During the State Fair, one of our biggest issues is parking.  A reminder that you cannot 
park on the “No Parking” or “No Parking during State Fair” streets.  There are signs 
throughout the city.  City staff have mailed parking permits to various neighborhoods 
where they do not have enough parking spaces.  If you are a renter, please contact the 
property owner or manager.  They can only request the permits and city staff already 
mailed the letters.   The city cannot grant any special permits or temporary signs if you 
are having family gatherings, moving, etc. Lastly, please remember to call 911 for 
parking issues and emergencies. 

4 of 33



• I want to let the public know that our Community Park building needs repair.  We will 
discuss this as a community to determine how we are going to proceed with this asset 
and how much it means to the whole community. 

• The Falcon Heights Fire Department open house event on August 10, went very well.  It 
had about 10-12 people who were interested in joining and asked great questions.  

 
City Administrator Thongvanh 

• Larpenteur Avenue West will be open in all four lanes for the State Fair.  The 
construction will resume after the State Fair. 

• We received the hoops for the basketball court.  If the weather continues to stay nice, 
then we will start pouring the concrete.  In addition, the shed was recently installed at 
the park. 

• Public Works Director is trying to get a professional to evaluate the Community Park 
building structure.  

• City staff and council have been reviewing the budget at City Council workshops.  We 
are looking at the long-range planning of the community and how we can stabilize some 
of our funds.  We are also bringing in a consultant or professional services to do long-
range strategic planning for the council and staff. 

• Public Works Department is getting ready to clean the median.  They could not clean it 
during the construction; therefore, the weeds are overgrown and can be a hazard. We 
are also looking to add more plants there. 

 
I.                    COMMUNITY FORUM: 
  

J.                    ADJOURNMENT: 8:54 P.M. 
  
 

5 of 33



BLANK PAGE 

6 of 33



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item General Disbursements and Payroll 

Description 
 

General Disbursements through: 8/22/19  $342,425.79 
Payroll through: 8/15/19 $22,608.26 

Budget Impact The general disbursements and payroll are consistent with the budget.  

Attachment(s) • General Disbursements and Payroll  

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council approve general 
disbursements and payroll. 

 

Meeting Date August 28, 2019 
Agenda Item Consent  F1 

Attachment General Disbursements and Payroll 
Submitted By Roland Olson, Finance Director 

7 of 33



BLANK PAGE 

8 of 33



9 of 33



10 of 33



11 of 33



12 of 33



13 of 33



14 of 33



15 of 33



16 of 33



17 of 33



18 of 33



        REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

      The City That Soars! 

Item Adopt Findings of Fact for Variance Request for 1800 Albert Street 

Description At the August 14, 2019 City Council meeting, the City Council passed a 
resolution to deny the request for a variance at 1800 Albert St for a corner side 
yard setback variance. In adopting the resolution, the City Council authorized 
the City Administrator to draft findings of fact about the variance.  

Budget Impact N/A  

Attachment(s) • Findings of Fact

Action(s) Requested Staff recommends adopting the attached findings of fact for the variance 
request at 1800 Albert St.  

Meeting Date August 28, 2019 
Agenda Item Consent F2 

Attachment Findings of Fact 
Submitted By Justin Markon, Community 

Development Coordinator 

19 of 33



BLANK PAGE 

20 of 33



 1 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
IN RE: 
 
Application of Todd Thun and Marsha Keppel,  FINDINGS OF FACT 
1800 Albert Street, for a variance 
from corner side yard setback requirements. 
    
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 On August 14, 2019, the Falcon Heights City Council met at its regularly scheduled 

meeting to consider the application of Todd Thun and Marsha Keppel, 1800 Albert Street, for a 

variance from the corner side yard setback requirements for a detached garage in the R-1 Zoning 

District.  The applicant was present, and the City Council now makes the following: 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 

 1. The subject property is zoned R-1, One Family Residential District.  

2. The subject property is legally described as:  

The North 68.58 feet of the West ½ of Lot 1, Block 1, Larpenteur Villas 

3. The applicant seeks a variance from Section 113-240, Subd. (e) (corner side yard 

requirements) of the Falcon Heights City Code, which requires structures or buildings to be 

located no closer than fifteen (15) feet from the corner side yard line. 

 4. The subject property is 20,425.28 square feet. The existing garage is set back five 

(5) feet from the north property line, and it is legally nonconforming. The variance proposal 

requests a setback of eight (8) feet for a replacement garage. 

 5.  The City of Falcon Heights Planning Commission met at its regularly scheduled 

meeting on July 23, 2019 to conduct a public hearing and issue a recommendation. The Planning 

Commission voted 3-1 to recommend approval of the variance. 

21 of 33



 2 

6. Section 113-62 Subd. (e) of the Falcon Height City Code directs that the City to 

make the following findings when considering a request for a variance: 

(1)  The variance would be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
this chapter.  

   
The City Council finds that the granting of this variance would be in 
harmony with the general purposes and intent of Chapter 113. 

 
(2)  The variance would be consistent with the comprehensive plan.  

 
 The City Council finds that the granting of this variance is consistent with 

the comprehensive plan.  
 
(3)  That, there are practical difficulties in complying with this chapter.  
 
 The City Council finds that the granting of this variance does not meet all 

three criteria for practical difficulties as described in Minnesota Statutes § 
462.357, subd. 6(2). The proposed replacement garage location of eight 
feet from the property line is not reasonable due to the unknown future use 
of the Garden Avenue right of way. The property does not present physical 
uniqueness that would prohibit building the garage at the required 
setback. The essential character of the neighborhood would not change 
with this garage. 

 
(4)  That the granting of the variance will not impair an adequate supply of light 

and air to adjacent property, or substantially increase the congestion of the 
public streets, or increase the danger of fire, or endanger the public safety.  

  
 The City Council finds that the variance would not impair an adequate 

supply of light and air to the adjacent properties, or substantially increase 
the congestion of the public streets, or increase the danger of fire, or 
endanger public safety. 

 
(5)  That the requested variance is the minimum action required to eliminate the 

practical difficulties.  
 

The City Council finds that the variance does not meet the criteria for 
practical difficulties and the garage may be located elsewhere on the 
property. 

 
(6)  Variances shall be granted for earth sheltered construction as defined in 

Minn. Stats. § 216C.06, subd. 14, when in harmony with this chapter. 
Variances may be approved for the temporary use of a one-family 
dwelling as a two-family dwelling.  

22 of 33



3 

The City Council finds that criteria (6) does not apply to this variance 
application. 

DECISION 

The City Council of the City of Falcon Heights denies the application by Todd Thun and 

Marsha Keppel for a variance from Section 113-240, Subd. (e) of the Falcon Heights City Code 

for 1800 Albert Street. 

ADOPTED by the Falcon Heights City Council on this 28th day of August, 2019. 

FALCON HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL 

Randall Gustafson 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

Sack Thongvanh 
City Administrator 

23 of 33



BLANK PAGE 

24 of 33



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Century Link Settlement Agreement 

Description 
 

Please see attached memorandum from Executive Director Dana Healy.   

Budget Impact There is a minimal impact on revenues for the budget.   

Attachment(s) • Memorandum from CTV Executive Director Dana Healy 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends approval of the Settlement Agreement between Qwest 
Broadband Services, Inc. d/b/a CenturyLink.   

 

Meeting Date August 28, 2019 
Agenda Item Policy G1  

Attachment Memorandum 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

25 of 33



BLANK PAGE 

26 of 33



Continued 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NORTH SUBURBAN COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION MEMO  

Item Description:  Century Link Settlement  

BACKGROUND 
CenturyLink announced its intent to exit the cable business in early Spring.  Century Link has stopped 

actively investing, marketing, and selling the Prism-TV cable product. A customer can only order the 

Prism-TV product when it is specifically asked for, and at the non-discounted rack rate. We have seen a 

substantial drop in cable subscribers for CenturyLink. 

Bradley Law, the representative of the JPA cities, notified CenturyLink that it was in violation of their 

franchise by making no attempt to serve additional subscribers.  Since it was CenturyLink's intent to 

eventually stop providing cable service all together, we opted to work with the company to transition 

and terminate the franchise agreement, rather than engaging in an expensive franchise compliance 

process.  We then entered into settlement discussions with CenturyLink. 

1.  CenturyLink agrees that its cable franchise will terminate upon the expiration of the initial term of the 

franchise. 

2.  CenturyLink may terminate the franchise earlier upon 90 days’ notice to the franchising authority. 

3.  CenturyLink will remove any facilities that are used exclusively for cable service and pay for any 

damage to the rights-of-way due to these facilities.  [Note: We don't believe there are any facilities used 

exclusively for cable service.  CenturyLink remains subject to applicable permits, local code, and state 

statutes and rules for its communications system.] 

4.  CenturyLink will provide notice to its subscribers with information on how to replace their cable 

service.  CenturyLink will also pay for the return of any equipment that they require to be returned or 

provide instructions for disposal of the equipment. 

5.  CenturyLink waives all cable franchise renewal rights. 

We think this agreement benefits the cities because it avoids an expensive compliance process that 

ultimately would likely provide little benefit to subscribers in the short or long term.  It also clarifies that 

the CenturyLink franchises will terminate upon expiration of their initial term.  This allows our clients to 

avoid expending money on a cable franchise renewal process with CenturyLink or going through a 

compliance process related to whether CenturyLink would be allowed to hold over and continue service 

in each franchising jurisdiction without a cable franchise.  Finally, it minimizes impacts on CenturyLink's 

cable subscribers by giving subscribers notice, options to replace the service, and paying for the costs of 

returning equipment.  

27 of 33



Continued 
 

Please note, Century Link is still providing their other services in the area, including phone. Those 

services will still be available.  

POLICY OBJECTIVE 

To terminate the franchise agreement with Century Link and avoid an expensive renewal process.  

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 

This will avoid the NSCC and the cities from an expensive renewal process. The cost of executing this 

agreement is $2,000, which is a shared cost among the Joint Powers Authority member cities and the 

NSCC.  

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION 

Approval of the Century Link Settlement.  

Prepared by: Dana Healy, Executive Director NSCC/NSAC with content from Attorney Mike Bradley 

Attachments: A: Century Link Settlement Document 

28 of 33



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Settlement Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into on this _____ day of 

_____________________ 2019 by and between the North Suburban Communications Commission 

(“NSCC”), a Joint Powers Commission comprised of the municipalities of Arden Hills, Falcon Heights, 

Lauderdale, Little Canada, Mounds View, New Brighton, North Oaks, Roseville, and St. Anthony, 

Minnesota (the “Member Cities”), each of the Member Cities and Qwest Broadband Services, Inc. d/b/a 

CenturyLink (hereinafter “CenturyLink”). The NSCC, Member Cities and CenturyLink shall sometimes 

be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”  

I. RECITALS 

A.  The NSCC, among other things, negotiates and administers cable franchises on 

behalf of the Member Cities. 

 B. The Member Cities each, through the NSCC, and CenturyLink negotiated and entered 

into a cable franchise agreement with Qwest Broadband Services, Inc. (“QBSI”) DBA CenturyLink 

(collectively the “Franchise”). 

C. The NSCC has asserted that CenturyLink may be in violation of the Franchise for: (i) 

allegedly no longer aspiring to complete a reasonable build-out of its cable system within five years; (ii) 

allegedly no longer competing for Cable Service customers and not even trying to have market-based 

success; and (iii) allegedly not expending any effort to deploy its system in a shorter time period than 

allegedly required (collectively “Alleged Franchise Violations”). 

D. CenturyLink disputes the Alleged Franchise Violations, and specifically claims that it 

remains in compliance with the Franchise, including the market-based success language in the franchise; 

any build requirement set forth in the Franchise; and providing service as required in the Franchise. 

E. Each cable franchise agreement between each Member City and CenturyLink has a term 

of five years and expires between November 2020 and January 2021 per the cable franchise agreements 

(the “Initial Term”). 

F. It is the intent of the Parties to establish a process whereby the Member Cities and the 

NSCC will not pursue the Alleged Franchise Violations in exchange for the promises contained herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, considerations, 

mutual promises contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 

of which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, and intending to be legally bound, the Parties agree as 

follows: 

II. AGREEMENT 

  

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective on the date first written above 

(the “Effective Date”). 

29 of 33



2 

 

  

2. Franchise Term. The Parties agree that the Franchise shall terminate and 

CenturyLink shall cease providing Cable Service in each Member City at the expiration of the 

Initial Term; provided however that CenturyLink may elect to terminate the Franchise at an 

earlier date upon 90 days’ notice to each Member City. Upon any termination or expiration of 

the Franchise, CenturyLink shall cease providing Cable Service in the City. 

 

3. Removal of Facilities at Expiration of Franchise. Pursuant to Section 10.4 of 

the Franchise, CenturyLink shall remove any facilities that are used exclusively to provide Cable 

Service. CenturyLink shall not be required to remove any facilities that are used in another of 

CenturyLink’s, or its affiliates, networks, including facilities used to provide broadband Internet 

access services or voice communications services. Any damage to the rights-of-way related to 

facilities used exclusively to provide Cable Service (if any) in any Member City shall promptly 

be repaired at CenturyLink’s cost. In the event CenturyLink fails to make such repairs, each 

Member City may make the necessary repairs and CenturyLink shall pay for such repairs within 

thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice. 

 

4. Cable Subscriber Transition. CenturyLink shall provide at least 60 days written 

notice to its Cable Service subscribers of its intent to terminate its Cable Service product in each 

Member City and provide information on options available to its subscribers to replace the 

service. CenturyLink shall provide all of its Cable Subscribers with instructions on how to return 

or otherwise dispose of all CenturyLink on premises equipment (e.g., Set Top Boxes and remote 

controls). If CenturyLink requires the return of the on premises equipment, CenturyLink will 

provide its cable subscribers with a prepaid return shipping label and will not charge subscribers 

for the return of such equipment returned within 30 days of the disconnection date.  

 

5. Franchise Renewal. CenturyLink hereby waives any and all franchise renewal 

rights under federal and state law. CenturyLink agrees not to seek any renewal or extension of 

the Franchise past the Initial Term. The NSCC and the Member Cities agree to refrain from 

further pursuing any claims against CenturyLink for the Alleged Franchise Violations. 

 

6. Other Franchise Terms Remain Unchanged. Other than as set forth in this 

Agreement the Franchise remains unchanged. The Parties acknowledge a franchise fee review is 

being conducted by the NSCC, which is not resolved by this Agreement. 

 

7. No Admission. Except as expressly stated herein, it is understood and agreed that 

agreements made by the Parties in this Agreement are not to be construed as an admission of a 

contract right or liability on the part of either Party, and such agreements are a compromise and 

settlement of the Alleged Franchise Violations and CenturyLink’s ability to seek a formal or 

informal renewal or extension of the Franchise.  

 

8. Right to Make Agreement. The Parties represent, warrant and covenant that they 

have the right and authority to enter into and make this Agreement and those executing this 

Agreement have all necessary authority to execute this Agreement and bind the respective 

Parties. 

 

30 of 33



3 

 

9. Default. In the event of breach of this Agreement, the non-defaulting party may 

seek judicial relief from a court of competent jurisdiction. The prevailing party shall be entitled 

to all of its costs and expenses including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 

10. No Transfer. Each Party represents, warrants and covenants that it has the sole 

right and authority to execute this Agreement, and that it has not previously assigned or 

transferred, or purported to have assigned or transferred, to any corporation, entity or person, any 

cause of action, judgment, lien, indebtedness, damage, obligation, loss, claim, liability, or right 

included in this Agreement. 

 

11. Consultation With Attorneys And Advisors. The Parties expressly 

acknowledge that they have consulted, or have had the opportunity to consult, with whatever 

consultants, attorneys or other advisors each deems is appropriate in connection with the effect 

of this Agreement, and each Party assumes the risk arising from not seeking further additional 

consultation with such advisors. This Agreement has been, and shall be construed to have been, 

drafted by all of the Parties, so that the rule of construing the ambiguities against the drafter shall 

have no force or effect. 

 

12. Governing Law. The validity, construction, interpretation and administration of 

this Agreement shall be governed by the internal laws of the State of Minnesota, without regard 

to the principles of conflict of laws. Any action arising out of, or relating to, this Agreement shall 

be filed in a court of competent jurisdiction in Minnesota. Each Party hereby consents to the 

jurisdiction of such courts for the purposes described in this Section. 

 

13. Integration Clause. The Parties and/or their attorneys have engaged in settlement 

negotiations resulting in the execution of this Agreement. All of those settlement negotiations 

have been completed and are merged into this Agreement, which states as a final, complete, 

express, written and unambiguous integration exactly what the Parties have agreed. With respect 

to its subject matter, including without limitation all matters incorporated herein by reference, 

this Agreement is a complete integration and final expression of the Parties rights and duties. 

This Agreement is intended to be enforceable according to its written terms. There are no 

promises, oral agreements, representations, understandings or expectations of the Parties to the 

contrary. 

 

14. Modification. Any alteration, modification or amendment to this Agreement shall 

be void unless in writing, signed by both Parties. 

 

15. Severance. If, after the Effective Date of this Agreement, any provision of this 

Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable under present or future laws effective 

during the term of this Agreement, such provision will be fully severable and the remainder of 

the Agreement will remain enforceable and not affected thereby. 

 

16. Persons Bound. Except as otherwise stated herein, the terms of this Agreement 

shall extend to, and are binding upon, the Parties and each of their respective heirs, beneficiaries, 

representatives, partners, members, officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents, and 

authorized successors and assigns. 

31 of 33



4 

 

 

17. Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any rights, interests or obligations 

hereunder shall be assigned or transferred by any Party without the prior written consent of the 

other Party hereto. Any such assignment or transfer made without prior written consent of each 

Party hereto shall be null and void. 

 

18. Headings. All headings herein are provided for convenience of reference only 

and do not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

 

19. Execution in Multiple Counterparts. This Settlement Agreement and all 

documents to be executed hereunder may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 

may be treated as an original document. 

 

20. Copies. Both facsimile and PDF copies of the executed Agreement may be 

treated as original documents. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in their 

respective names on the date of this Agreement.  

 

QWEST BROADBAND  

SERVICES, INC. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

By: _______________________________ 

Its: _______________________________ 

 

Date: ____________________________ 

 

NORTH SUBURBAN 

COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

 

 

_________________________________  

Title:_____________________________ 

 

Date: ____________________________ 

 

CITY OF ARDEN HILLS, MINNESOTA 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________  

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS, 

MINNESOTA 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________  

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

 

CITY OF LAUDERDALE, 

MINNESOTA 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________  

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

CITY OF LITTLE CANADA, 

MINNESOTA 

 

__________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________  

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

32 of 33



5 

 

CITY OF MOUNDS VIEW, 

MINNESOTA 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________  

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

CITY OF NEW BRIGHTON, 

MINNESOTA 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________  

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS, MINNESOTA 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________  

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

CITY OF ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________  

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

CITY OF ST. ANTHONY, MINNESOTA 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Title: _____________________________  

 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

33 of 33


	1 - CCAgenda_8-28-19
	D1 - CCMIN_14_Aug
	F1 - RCA_Payables
	F1(2) - Payables_8-28-19
	F2 - RCA_1800 Albert St Variance Findings of Fact
	F2(2) - 1800 Albert St Variance Findings of Fact
	DECISION

	G1 - RCA_CenturyLink Seattlement Agreement
	G1(2) - CenturyLinkMemo_NSCCv1
	G1(3) - CenturyLink Settlement Agreement (NSCC)



